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I am pleased to present the fifth annual report of Al-Manar Finance and Leasing Company, for the fifth year after the 
establishment of the company. This year has witnessed difficult economic circumstances and crises at the level of the 
local and international economies, which reflected unfavorably on the financial performance of Al-Manar Finance and 
Leasing Company  because of its direct impact  on our liquidity position and the demand for our financial services in the 
Kuwaiti market. This has led to delay on our part in discharging some of our short-term financial obligations by the end 
of 2008. The delay was not caused by any wrong financing or investment decisions or speculative practices or extreme 
expansion policies, but rather by the fact that all existing and prospective credit lines of Al-Manar Finance and Leasing 
Company with local and regional banks and financial institutions were affected by the economic crisis that has hit the 
entire global economy and impacted several of our credit lines. 

Despite these problems, Al-Manar Finance and Leasing Company, with the grace of Allah Almighty, and thanks to the 
faithful efforts of the Company’s executive management, and the support provided by the Central Bank of Kuwait  and 
local banks, managed to overcome that situation by the end of May, 2009, and overcome the problem of discharging its 
short-term obligations by settling 50% of those obligations in cash and extending and re-scheduling the remaining 50% 
of the short-term obligations. This was achieved through the remarkable professional efforts made by the Company’s 
executive management in re-scheduling its financial obligations through direct negotiation with the creditors, without   
involving any local or foreign consulting service. 

The main challenge the Board of Directors and executive management seek to face is based on the following elements: 

1) To build new credit lines with a view to improve the operating cycle of the Company.
2) Ensure a smooth cash flow from the operations that form the backbone of the Company’s business. 
3) Maintain our high quality customer base which contributes most to the growth of Al-Manar Finance and Leasing 

Company. 
4) Complete the implementation of the new investment policy of the company which is based on expansion in 

the markets where the company operates through the establishment or participation in the establishment of 
consumer finance companies in the Middle East and North Africa region. 

Capital Intelligence has upgrade the credit rating of Al-Manar from BB to BB+ based on stable expectations of 
performance and the positive factors enjoyed by the company such as the considerable experience of the management 
team, shareholder composition, strong growth of the company’s loans portfolio, and its sound capital base.

Despite the adverse circumstances witnessed during the past year, the company made a net operating profit of KD 
3,169,838 for the period up to 31 December 2008, representing at earnings per share of 10.31 Fils, with total revenues 
amounting to KD 14,075,582 and shareholders’ equity standing at KD 37,517,123.  The Board of Directors has decided 
to recommend to the general assembly not to distribute any dividend for the financial year ended 31 December 2008. 

Chairman’s Message

 In the name of Allah the Most Compassionate the Most Merciful, and thank 
be to Allah the Lord of all Beings and prayer and peace be upon our Lord 
Mohammed and upon all his family members and companions. 

Honorable Shareholders, 
May peace and Allah’s mercy and blessings be upon you, 

In conclusion, we thank Allah Almighty for the good results achieved by the company.  I would also like to express 
our thanks and gratitude to the members of the Sharia Supervision Panel of the company, our honorable shareholders, 
members of the Board of Directors, the executive management and all the employees of the company for their continuous 
efforts to develop the performance of the company. We are equally grateful for the support we have received from the 
Central Bank of Kuwait and the Ministry of Commerce and Industry.

On behalf of your honorable assembly, the Board of Directors and the employees of the company, I express our deepest 
feelings of respect and gratitude to His Highness the Amir, His Highness the Crown Prince and His Highness the Prime 
Minister for their benevolent patronage of the national economy and the country’s establishments and companies. May 
Allah protect Kuwait and its people from all evil. 

And may peace and Allah’s mercy and blessing be upon you. 

       
       Bader Abdullah Al-Sumait 
       Chairman
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Report of the Sharia Supervision Panel
Shareholders of Al Manar Financing and Leasing

Dear Sirs,
In accordance with the contract concluded with the Sharia Supervision Panel, we audited the contracts and 
transactions executed by the company during the financial year expiring on 31/12/2008 to give our opinion on 
the extent to which the company is committing to the Islamic Sharia Laws, as stated in the Sharia opinions, 
directions, and decisions issued by us.
The responsibility of committing to the execution of the contracts and the transactions in accordance with the 
Islamic Sharia Laws, as stated by us, is that of the Board. Our responsibility is limited to giving our independent 
opinion regarding the extent to which the company is committing to these laws, based on our auditing.
We executed the auditing, which required planning and executing the auditing procedures for obtaining all the 
information, explanations, and declarations, which we deem necessary for providing us with enough evidence 
as to confirm that the company is committing to the Islamic Sharia Laws as stated by us.
We executed our auditing by examining samples of each type of contract and transaction executed during 
that period. We believe that the auditing works which we executed provides a suitable basis for giving our 
opinion.
In our opinion:
- During the determined financial year, the company has been committed to the execution of its obligations 

by executing contracts and transactions in accordance with Islamic Sharia Laws as stated in the Sharia 
opinions, directions, and decisions issued by us.

- The responsibility of paying Zakat is that of the shareholders.

Sharia Supervision Panel

Date:  27/03/1430 AH
 24/03/2009 AD

Abdel Bari Mohammed Ali Mishaal
Member of the Panel

Mohammed Abdel Razzaq Al Tabtabaei
Head of the Panel

Bader Abdel Razzaq Al Mass
Member of the Panel
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Basis of Qualified Opinion 
Based on the tests that we performed over the computer processing environment, we concluded that there are some 
deficiencies in the controls for maintaining accounts receivable records. This has resulted in an inability to 
determine the related impact on finance revenues. The amounts that we were able to identify in relation to prior 
years were restated (refer to note 5), but we were not able to determine the accurate impact on accounts receivable 
and finance revenues of the Group by other audit procedures. 

Qualified Opinion 
In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be necessary in 
respect of the matters discussed in the preceding paragraph, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in 
all material respects, the financial position of the Group at 31 December 2008, and of its financial performance and 
its cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2008 in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
Furthermore, in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the consolidated 
financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors relating to 
these consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report that we obtained all the 
information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated financial 
statements incorporate all information that is required by the Commercial Companies Law and the Company’s 
Articles of Association. According to the information available to us, there were no contraventions during the year 
of either the Commercial Companies Law or of the Company’s Articles of Association which might have materially 
affected the Group’s financial position, or the results of its operations. 
We further report that, during the course of our audit, except as disclosed in note 5, we have not become aware of 
any material violations of the provisions of Law No. 32 of 1968, as amended, concerning currency, the Central 
Bank of Kuwait and the organisation of banking business, and its related regulations during the year ended 31 
December 2008. 

Jassim Ahmad Al-Fahad 
License No. 53-A 
Al-Fahad & Co. Deloitte & Touche 

 Dr. Saud Al-Humaidi 
Licence No. 51 A 
Al Humaidi & Partners 
Independent Member of Baker Tilly International 

30 March 2009 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Shareholders of  
Al Manar Financing and Leasing Company K.S.C. (Closed) 

Report on the consolidated financial statements 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Al Manar Financing and Leasing Company 
K.S.C. (Closed) (“the Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise 
the consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2008, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in 
equity and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2008, and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory notes. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 were audited 
by another auditor, whose report dated 28 May 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on these consolidated 
financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
The Group’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, 
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying 
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the 
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the  consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.  

Al-Fahad & Co. 
Salhia Complex 
Gate 2, 4th Floor 
P.O. Box 23049 
Safat 13091 
State of Kuwait 

Tel: + (965) 22438060 
Tel: + (965) 22468934 
Fax:+ (965) 22452080 
www.deloitte.com
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Consolidated Statement of Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 
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31 December 
2008

31 December 
2007 

  Notes  KD  KD 
Income (Restated) 
Finance revenues   11,267,924 9,393,298
Investment income  18 1,505,768 1,613,122 
Share of results of associate 176,617 - 
Income from Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables   70,107 404,016 
Other income  19 1,055,166 1,125,917 

  14,075,582 12,536,353 
    

Expenses     
Finance cost   (6,624,974) (5,393,873) 
General and administrative expenses  20 (1,922,026) (953,637) 
Staff costs  21 (1,161,911) (1,113,073) 
Provision for doubtful debts  7 (1,007,773) (1,124,652) 
Depreciation and amortization   (66,900) (87,003) 
Employees' share option plan cost   (50,442) (100,891) 
   (10,834,026) (8,773,129) 
Profit before contribution to Kuwait Foundation for 

the Advancement of Sciences (“KFAS”), Zakat and 
Directors’ remuneration 3,241,556 3,763,224 

Contribution to KFAS   (29,174) (43,130) 
Zakat   (42,544) (2,936) 
Directors’ remuneration   - (100,000) 
Profit for the year   3,169,838 3,617,158 

Earnings per share  22 10.31 Fils 11.86 Fils 

The notes on pages 8 to 31 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

3,169,838 3,617,158

10.31 Fils 11.86 Fils

The notes on pages 15 to 38 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Balance Sheet
At 31 December 2008

AL MANAR FINANCING AND LEASING COMPANY K.S.C. (CLOSED)  
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

At 31 December 2008 
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31 December 

2008
31 December 

2007
  Notes  KD  KD 

ASSETS      (Restated) 
Cash and cash equivalents  6  3,251,154 3,556,288 
Accounts receivable  7  97,252,595 87,616,162 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  8  11,119,157 14,513,537 
Investment in associate  9  4,081,131 - 
Investment property  10  1,890,519 - 
Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables  11  200,127 5,136,417 
Other receivables and prepayments  12  358,754 544,784 
Intangible assets    20,870 29,556 
Property and equipment    78,487 ` 103,195
Total assets    118,252,794 111,499,939 

      
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY       
Liabilities      
Islamic Murabaha and Wakala payables  13 77,573,719  71,499,600 
Accounts payable and other credit balances  14 1,552,184  2,729,205 
Due to related party  24 1,364,039  - 
Provision for staff indemnity   245,729  167,351 
Total liabilities    80,735,671 74,396,156 

      
EQUITY       
Share capital  15 30,858,630  30,701,000 
Share premium  15 55,384  27,010 
Statutory reserve  16 1,178,931  854,775 
Voluntary reserve  17  1,156,817 832,661 
Employees’ share option plan reserve   248,572 198,130 
Foreign currency translation reserve   77,156 - 
Retained earnings   3,941,633 4,490,207 
Total equity   37,517,123 37,103,783 
Total liabilities and equity   118,252,794 111,499,939 

Bader Abdulla Al- Sumait 
Chairman 

 Salah Mohamad Al-Wazzan 
Vice Chairman 

The notes on pages 8 to 31 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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31 December 
2008

31 December 
2007

Notes KD  KD 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    (Restated) 
Profit for the year 3,169,838 3,617,158 
Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortization 66,900 87,003
Provision for doubtful debts 7 1,007,773 1,124,652
Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL 18 67,410 (623,006)
Gain on sale of financial assets at FVTPL 18 (1,486,108) (869,284)
Dividend income 18 (87,070) (120,832)
Share of results of associate (176,617) -
Income from Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables (70,107) (404,016)
Finance cost 6,624,974 5,393,873
Employees’ share option plan cost 50,442 100,891
Provision for staff indemnity 78,378 65,079

9,245,813 8,371,518
Accounts receivable (10,644,206) (18,919,323)
Other receivables and prepayments 186,030 (371,962)
Due to related party 1,364,039 -
Accounts payable and other credit balances (1,383,531) 434,946
Payments of staff indemnity - (18,162)
Net cash used in operating activities (1,231,855) (10,502,983) 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL (3,216,300) 471,516 
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at FVTPL 7,090,401 - 
Purchase of investment in associate (2,888,381) - 
Purchase of investment property (1,890,519) - 
Proceeds from Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables 5,136,417 5,000,000 
Payments made to Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables (200,000) (9,973,123) 
Income from Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables received 69,980 240,722 
Dividend income received 87,070 120,832 
Purchase of property and equipment (21,439) (86,890) 
Purchase of intangible assets (12,067) (4,019) 
Net cash generated by / (used in) investing activities 4,155,162 (4,230,962) 

(Continued) 
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1. FORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 
Al Manar Financing and Leasing Company K.S.C. (Closed) (“the Parent Company”) was incorporated in 
the State of Kuwait in 2003 by the authorized letter of incorporation no. 4857 file 1 dated 6 December 
2003.
The main activities of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”) are 
represented in practicing all financing and investing activities according to the Islamic Share’a principles. 
The Parent Company is regulated by the Central Bank of Kuwait. 
The registered office of the Parent Company is P.O. Box 22828, Safat 13089, Kuwait. 
The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 
March 2009. 

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS 
Interpretations effective in the current year 
Three Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee are 
effective for the current year. These are: IFRIC 11 IFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions; IFRIC
12: Service Concession Arrangements; and IFRIC 14 IAS 19: The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, 
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction. 
The adoption of these Interpretations has not led to any changes in the Group’s accounting policies. 

Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet adopted
 At the date of authorisation of these  consolidated financial statements, the following Standards and 

Interpretations were in issue but not yet effective: 
IAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial 
Statements

Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
January 2009 

IAS 16 (Revised) Property, Plant and Equipment Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
January 2009 

IAS 19 (Revised) Employee Benefits Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
January 2009 

IAS 20 (Revised) Government Grants and 
Disclosure of Government Assistance

Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
January 2009 

IAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
January 2009 

IAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements

Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
July 2009 

IAS 28 (Revised) Investments in Associates Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
July 2009 

IAS 29 (Revised) Financial Reporting in 
Hyperinflationary Economies

Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
January 2009 

IAS 31 (Revised) Interests in Joint Ventures Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
July 2009 

IAS 32 (Revised) Financial Instruments: 
Presentation

Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
January 2009 

IAS 36 (Revised) Impairment of Assets Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
January 2009 

IAS 38 (Revised) Intangible Assets Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
January 2009 

1. FORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS
 Interpretations effective in the current year

 Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet adopted
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31 December 
2008

31 December 
2007

 Note KD  KD 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  (Restated) 
Proceeds from issuance of share capital 186,004 324,000 
Dividends paid (2,863,590) (1,954,178) 
Net movement in Islamic Murabaha and Wakala payables 5,582,331 20,093,538 
Finance cost paid (6,133,186) (4,071,028) 
Net cash (used in) / generated by financing activities (3,228,441) 14,392,332 
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (305,134) (341,613) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 3,556,288 3,897,901 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 6 3,251,154 3,556,288 

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS     

INVESTING ACTIVITIES     
Transfer of financial assets at FVTPL to investment in associate  938,977 -

The notes on pages 8 to 31 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
At 31 December 2008

(3,228,441)
(305,134)
3,556,288
3,251,154

14,392,332
(341,613)
3,897,901
3,556,288

The notes on pages 15 to 38 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
Basis of preparation (Continued) 

 These consolidated financial statements are presented in Kuwaiti Dinar (“KD”), which is the Group’s 
functional and presentation currency. 
These consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention with the 
exception of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which are carried at fair value. 

Basis of consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its 
subsidiaries (see below). Subsidiaries are those enterprises controlled by the Parent Company. Control 
exists when the Parent Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and 
operating policies of an enterprise so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The financial statements of 
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent Company, using consistent 
accounting policies. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may 
exist. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year, if any, are included in the 
consolidated statement of income from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of 
disposal, as appropriate. 
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together 
like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and 
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation. 
Minority interests, if any, in the net assets (excluding goodwill) of consolidated subsidiaries are identified 
separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority interests consist of the amount of those interests at 
the date of the original business combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date 
of the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the 
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority 
has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses. 

 Details of subsidiaries are as follows: 

Ownership and 
percentage of voting 

power  

Name of subsidiaries 2008 2007 
Country of 

incorporation 
Principal  
activities 

United Tasaheel Real Estate Company 
(Bader Abdulla Al Sumait and Partner 
W.L.L.) 100% 100% Kuwait 

Buying and selling 
 of real estate 

Manarat Tasaheel Real Estate Company 
(Hamad Abdullah Ahmed and Partner 
W.L.L.) 100% 100% Kuwait Project Management

Al-Manar Express for Marketing Consulting 
Company (Abdullah Saoud Al Bader and 
Partner W.L.L.) 100% 100% Kuwait Consulting activities

Al- Manar Watania for Administrative 
Consulting Company (Hamad Abdullah 
Madoh and Partner W.L.L.) 100% 100% Kuwait Consulting activities

Bait Al-Tasaheel Real Estate Company 
W.L.L. 100% 100% Kuwait 

Buying and selling  
 of real estate 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
 Basis of preparation (Continued)
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2.     ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED) 
Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet adopted (continued) 

IAS 39 (Revised) Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement 

Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
January 2009 and 1 July 2009 

IAS 40 (Revised) Investment Property Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
January 2009 

IAS 41 (Revised) Agriculture Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
January 2009 

IFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of 
International Financial Reporting Standards

Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
January 2009. 

IFRS 2 (Revised) Share-based Payment Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
January 2009 

IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
July 2009 

IFRS 5 (Revised) Non-current Assets Held for 
Sale and Discontinued Operations

Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
July 2009 

IFRS 8 Operating Segments Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
January 2009 

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
July 2008 

IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of 
Real Estate

Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
January 2009 

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a 
Foreign Operation

Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 
October 2008 

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to  
Owners

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 July 2009 

 The directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations, once became effective in 
future years, will have no material financial impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group 
in the year of initial application. 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
Basis of preparation 
The  consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), 
and Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee of the IASB, 
as adopted for use by the State of Kuwait for financial services institutions regulated by the Central Bank 
of Kuwait (“CBK”). These regulations require adoption of all IFRS except for the IAS 39 requirement for 
collective impairment provision, which has been replaced by the CBK requirement for a minimum general 
provision as described below.  
In March 2007, the CBK issued a circular amending the basis of making general provisions on facilities 
changing the rate from 2% to 1% for cash facilities and from 1% to 0.5% for non cash facilities. The 
required rates were to be applied effective from 1 January 2007 on the net increase in facilities, net of 
certain categories of collateral, during the reporting year. The general provision in excess of the present 
1% for cash facilities and 0.5% for non cash facilities as of 31 December 2006 was retained as a general 
provision until 20 November 2008 when the CBK issued a directive that permits the investment 
companies to release the surplus provision for doubtful debts to the consolidated statement of income. 
The accounting policies have been applied consistently by the Group and are consistent with those used in 
the previous year, except for changes resulting from amendments to IFRS as mentioned in note 2. 

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED)
 Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet adopted (Continued)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 Basis of preparation
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2.     ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (CONTINUED) 
Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet adopted (continued) 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
Basis of preparation 
The  consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), 
and Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee of the IASB, 
as adopted for use by the State of Kuwait for financial services institutions regulated by the Central Bank 
of Kuwait (“CBK”). These regulations require adoption of all IFRS except for the IAS 39 requirement for 
collective impairment provision, which has been replaced by the CBK requirement for a minimum general 
provision as described below.  
In March 2007, the CBK issued a circular amending the basis of making general provisions on facilities 
changing the rate from 2% to 1% for cash facilities and from 1% to 0.5% for non cash facilities. The 
required rates were to be applied effective from 1 January 2007 on the net increase in facilities, net of 
certain categories of collateral, during the reporting year. The general provision in excess of the present 
1% for cash facilities and 0.5% for non cash facilities as of 31 December 2006 was retained as a general 
provision until 20 November 2008 when the CBK issued a directive that permits the investment 
companies to release the surplus provision for doubtful debts to the consolidated statement of income. 
The accounting policies have been applied consistently by the Group and are consistent with those used in 
the previous year, except for changes resulting from amendments to IFRS as mentioned in note 2. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
Financial assets (Continued)
Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables 

 Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables represent financial assets originated by the Group and invested 
with institutions for onward deals by those institutions in various Islamic financial operations, and are carried 
at amortized cost. 

Impairment of financial assets 
 Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet 

date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events 
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the 
investment have been impacted. 
For accounts receivables, objective evidence of impairment could include: (i) significant financial difficulty 
of the issuer or counterparty; or (ii) default or delinquency in profit or principal payments; or (iii) it becoming 
probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation. 
In addition, in accordance with CBK instructions, a minimum general provision of 1% for cash facilities and 
0.5% for non cash facilities is made on all credit facilities net of certain restricted categories of collateral, and 
not subject to specific provision. 
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets 
with the exception of accounts receivable, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an 
allowance account. When an account receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the 
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the 
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the 
consolidated statement of income. 
If in a subsequent year, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment 
loss is reversed through the consolidated statement of income to the extent that the carrying amount of the 
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been 
had the impairment not been recognised. 

Derecognition of financial assets 
 The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 

expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to 
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an 
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also 
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

Financial liabilities 
Islamic Murabaha and Wakala payables

 Islamic Murabaha and Wakala payables are Islamic transactions involving the Group purchase of assets from 
a counterparty and settlement thereof at cost plus an agreed profit on a deferred payment basis. Islamic 
Murabaha and Wakala payables are stated at amortized cost.

Accounts payable 
 Accounts payable are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using 

the effective profit rate method. 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
 Financial assets (Continued)

 Financial liabilities
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allowance account. When an account receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the 
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the 
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the 
consolidated statement of income. 
If in a subsequent year, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment 
loss is reversed through the consolidated statement of income to the extent that the carrying amount of the 
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been 
had the impairment not been recognised. 

Derecognition of financial assets 
 The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 

expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to 
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an 
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also 
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

Financial liabilities 
Islamic Murabaha and Wakala payables

 Islamic Murabaha and Wakala payables are Islamic transactions involving the Group purchase of assets from 
a counterparty and settlement thereof at cost plus an agreed profit on a deferred payment basis. Islamic 
Murabaha and Wakala payables are stated at amortized cost.

Accounts payable 
 Accounts payable are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using 

the effective profit rate method. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
Financial assets
Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is 
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the 
market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial 
assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value. 
Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: ‘cash and cash equivalents’, ‘accounts 
receivable’, ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ and ‘Islamic Murabaha and Wakala 
receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at 
the time of initial recognition.

Effective profit rate method 
 The effective profit rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of 

allocating profit over the relevant year. The effective profit rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter year. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash in portfolio and bank balances. 

Accounts receivable 
 Accounts receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, net of unearned profit, and are 

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective profit rate method, net of specific and general 
provisions for amounts estimated to be uncollectible on the basis of a continuous appraisal of the receivables 
portfolio considering current economic conditions and other relevant factors. Specific provisions are made to 
reduce all impaired receivables to their expected realisable value and general provisions are made to provide 
for losses known from experience to exist but not yet specifically identified in accordance with the 
requirements of the Central Bank of Kuwait. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) 
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the financial asset is either held for trading or it is 
designated as at FVTPL. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if: 
i)   it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or 
ii) it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a

  recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or  
iii) it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.  
A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial 
recognition if: 
i) such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that

would otherwise arise; or  
ii) the financial asset forms part of a Group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is  

managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's  
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided  
internally on that basis; or 

iii) it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the entire
      combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL. 
Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in the 
consolidated statement of income.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
 Financial assets



�0 ���0 ���0 ���0 ��

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
At 31 December 2008

AL MANAR FINANCING AND LEASING COMPANY K.S.C. (CLOSED)  
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended 31 December 2008 

 14 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 Property and equipment (Continued) 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed at each balance sheet date, 
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on prospective basis. 
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as 
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the 
consolidated statement of income.

 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets 
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, 
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An 
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an 
indication that the asset may be impaired. 
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
If the recoverable amount of an asset (cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 
the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is recognised as an expense immediately. 
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income 
immediately.

 Provision for staff indemnity
Provision is made for staff indemnity which is payable on completion of employment. The provision is 
calculated in accordance with Kuwait Labour Law based on employees’ salaries and accumulated years of 
service or on the basis of employment contracts, where such contracts provide extra benefits. The provision, 
which is unfunded, is determined as the liability that would arise as a result of the involuntary termination of 
staff at the balance sheet date, on the basis that this computation is a reliable approximation of the present 
value of this obligation. 

 Employees’ share option plan 
 The Group provides employees with the ability to purchase the Company’s shares under an employee share 

purchase plan. Any difference between the option price and the market value of the Company’s share at the 
date of grant will be treated as discount. The Group records an expense, based on its estimate of the discount 
related to shares expected to vest on a straight line basis over the vesting year.   
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 Property and equipment (Continued) 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed at each balance sheet date, 
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on prospective basis. 
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as 
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the 
consolidated statement of income.

 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets 
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, 
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An 
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an 
indication that the asset may be impaired. 
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
If the recoverable amount of an asset (cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 
the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is recognised as an expense immediately. 
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income 
immediately.

 Provision for staff indemnity
Provision is made for staff indemnity which is payable on completion of employment. The provision is 
calculated in accordance with Kuwait Labour Law based on employees’ salaries and accumulated years of 
service or on the basis of employment contracts, where such contracts provide extra benefits. The provision, 
which is unfunded, is determined as the liability that would arise as a result of the involuntary termination of 
staff at the balance sheet date, on the basis that this computation is a reliable approximation of the present 
value of this obligation. 

 Employees’ share option plan 
 The Group provides employees with the ability to purchase the Company’s shares under an employee share 

purchase plan. Any difference between the option price and the market value of the Company’s share at the 
date of grant will be treated as discount. The Group records an expense, based on its estimate of the discount 
related to shares expected to vest on a straight line basis over the vesting year.   

AL MANAR FINANCING AND LEASING COMPANY K.S.C. (CLOSED)  
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended 31 December 2008 

 14 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 Property and equipment (Continued) 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed at each balance sheet date, 
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on prospective basis. 
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as 
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the 
consolidated statement of income.

 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets 
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, 
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An 
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an 
indication that the asset may be impaired. 
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
If the recoverable amount of an asset (cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 
the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is recognised as an expense immediately. 
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income 
immediately.

 Provision for staff indemnity
Provision is made for staff indemnity which is payable on completion of employment. The provision is 
calculated in accordance with Kuwait Labour Law based on employees’ salaries and accumulated years of 
service or on the basis of employment contracts, where such contracts provide extra benefits. The provision, 
which is unfunded, is determined as the liability that would arise as a result of the involuntary termination of 
staff at the balance sheet date, on the basis that this computation is a reliable approximation of the present 
value of this obligation. 

 Employees’ share option plan 
 The Group provides employees with the ability to purchase the Company’s shares under an employee share 

purchase plan. Any difference between the option price and the market value of the Company’s share at the 
date of grant will be treated as discount. The Group records an expense, based on its estimate of the discount 
related to shares expected to vest on a straight line basis over the vesting year.   

AL MANAR FINANCING AND LEASING COMPANY K.S.C. (CLOSED)  
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended 31 December 2008 

 14 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 Property and equipment (Continued) 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed at each balance sheet date, 
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on prospective basis. 
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as 
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the 
consolidated statement of income.

 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets 
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, 
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An 
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an 
indication that the asset may be impaired. 
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
If the recoverable amount of an asset (cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 
the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is recognised as an expense immediately. 
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income 
immediately.

 Provision for staff indemnity
Provision is made for staff indemnity which is payable on completion of employment. The provision is 
calculated in accordance with Kuwait Labour Law based on employees’ salaries and accumulated years of 
service or on the basis of employment contracts, where such contracts provide extra benefits. The provision, 
which is unfunded, is determined as the liability that would arise as a result of the involuntary termination of 
staff at the balance sheet date, on the basis that this computation is a reliable approximation of the present 
value of this obligation. 

 Employees’ share option plan 
 The Group provides employees with the ability to purchase the Company’s shares under an employee share 

purchase plan. Any difference between the option price and the market value of the Company’s share at the 
date of grant will be treated as discount. The Group records an expense, based on its estimate of the discount 
related to shares expected to vest on a straight line basis over the vesting year.   
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3.          SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
Financial liabilities (Continued) 

 Derecognition of financial liabilities 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expired. 

Investment in associate 
 An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor 

an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating 
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. 
The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements 
using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which 
case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet 
at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate, less 
any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the Group’s 
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s 
net investment in the associate) are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or 
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 
Where the Group transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of 
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

 Investment property 
Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is measured 
initially at its cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is 
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is 
provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of investment properties. The carrying 
amounts are reviewed at each balance sheet date on an individual basis to assess whether they are recorded in 
excess of their recoverable amount. Provisions for impairment losses, if any, are made where carrying values 
exceed the recoverable amount. 

Intangible assets 
Intangible assets, which consist of software and key money, are reported at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of 3 years. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date, with the effect of any changes in estimates being accounted for on a prospective basis. 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.  
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of income during the financial year in 
which they are incurred. 
Depreciation is calculated based on the estimated useful lives of the applicable assets on a straight-line basis 
commencing when the assets are ready for their intended use.  
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3.          SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
Financial liabilities (Continued) 

 Derecognition of financial liabilities 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expired. 

Investment in associate 
 An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor 

an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating 
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. 
The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements 
using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which 
case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet 
at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate, less 
any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the Group’s 
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s 
net investment in the associate) are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or 
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 
Where the Group transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of 
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

 Investment property 
Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is measured 
initially at its cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is 
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is 
provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of investment properties. The carrying 
amounts are reviewed at each balance sheet date on an individual basis to assess whether they are recorded in 
excess of their recoverable amount. Provisions for impairment losses, if any, are made where carrying values 
exceed the recoverable amount. 

Intangible assets 
Intangible assets, which consist of software and key money, are reported at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of 3 years. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date, with the effect of any changes in estimates being accounted for on a prospective basis. 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.  
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of income during the financial year in 
which they are incurred. 
Depreciation is calculated based on the estimated useful lives of the applicable assets on a straight-line basis 
commencing when the assets are ready for their intended use.  
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3.          SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
Financial liabilities (Continued) 

 Derecognition of financial liabilities 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expired. 

Investment in associate 
 An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor 

an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating 
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. 
The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements 
using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which 
case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet 
at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate, less 
any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the Group’s 
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s 
net investment in the associate) are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or 
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 
Where the Group transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of 
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

 Investment property 
Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is measured 
initially at its cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is 
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is 
provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of investment properties. The carrying 
amounts are reviewed at each balance sheet date on an individual basis to assess whether they are recorded in 
excess of their recoverable amount. Provisions for impairment losses, if any, are made where carrying values 
exceed the recoverable amount. 

Intangible assets 
Intangible assets, which consist of software and key money, are reported at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of 3 years. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date, with the effect of any changes in estimates being accounted for on a prospective basis. 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.  
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of income during the financial year in 
which they are incurred. 
Depreciation is calculated based on the estimated useful lives of the applicable assets on a straight-line basis 
commencing when the assets are ready for their intended use.  
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3.          SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
Financial liabilities (Continued) 

 Derecognition of financial liabilities 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expired. 

Investment in associate 
 An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor 

an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating 
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. 
The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements 
using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which 
case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet 
at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate, less 
any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the Group’s 
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s 
net investment in the associate) are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or 
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 
Where the Group transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of 
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

 Investment property 
Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is measured 
initially at its cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is 
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is 
provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of investment properties. The carrying 
amounts are reviewed at each balance sheet date on an individual basis to assess whether they are recorded in 
excess of their recoverable amount. Provisions for impairment losses, if any, are made where carrying values 
exceed the recoverable amount. 

Intangible assets 
Intangible assets, which consist of software and key money, are reported at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of 3 years. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date, with the effect of any changes in estimates being accounted for on a prospective basis. 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.  
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of income during the financial year in 
which they are incurred. 
Depreciation is calculated based on the estimated useful lives of the applicable assets on a straight-line basis 
commencing when the assets are ready for their intended use.  
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3.          SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
Financial liabilities (Continued) 

 Derecognition of financial liabilities 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expired. 

Investment in associate 
 An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor 

an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating 
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. 
The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements 
using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which 
case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet 
at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associate, less 
any impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the Group’s 
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s 
net investment in the associate) are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or 
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 
Where the Group transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of 
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

 Investment property 
Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is measured 
initially at its cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is 
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is 
provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of investment properties. The carrying 
amounts are reviewed at each balance sheet date on an individual basis to assess whether they are recorded in 
excess of their recoverable amount. Provisions for impairment losses, if any, are made where carrying values 
exceed the recoverable amount. 

Intangible assets 
Intangible assets, which consist of software and key money, are reported at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of 3 years. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date, with the effect of any changes in estimates being accounted for on a prospective basis. 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.  
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of income during the financial year in 
which they are incurred. 
Depreciation is calculated based on the estimated useful lives of the applicable assets on a straight-line basis 
commencing when the assets are ready for their intended use.  
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3.        SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
Provisions 

 A provision is recognized when, and only when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where 
the effect is material. 

Finance cost 
 Finance cost is calculated under the accrual basis at contractual rates on the amounts outstanding at the balance 

sheet date. 

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 
UNCERTAINTY 

 In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, management is required to 
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not 
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of 
the revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.
Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies  
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below), that management 
has made in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on 
the amounts recognised in consolidated financial statements. 
Classification of  investments 
The Group’s management decides on the acquisition of an investment whether it should be classified as 
available for sale or at FVTPL.  
The Group classifies all its investments as at FVTPL. Investments are classified as at FVTPL if they have been 
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term and their fair value can be reliably determined. 
Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet 
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year are discussed below: 
Valuation of unquoted equity investments 
Valuation of unquoted equity investments is normally based on one of the following: 

recent arm’s length market transactions; 
current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; 
other valuation models. 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
 Provisions
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3.        SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
Provisions 
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3.        SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
Provisions 
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are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of 
the revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.
Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies  
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below), that management 
has made in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on 
the amounts recognised in consolidated financial statements. 
Classification of  investments 
The Group’s management decides on the acquisition of an investment whether it should be classified as 
available for sale or at FVTPL.  
The Group classifies all its investments as at FVTPL. Investments are classified as at FVTPL if they have been 
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term and their fair value can be reliably determined. 
Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet 
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year are discussed below: 
Valuation of unquoted equity investments 
Valuation of unquoted equity investments is normally based on one of the following: 

recent arm’s length market transactions; 
current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; 
other valuation models. 
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3.        SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
Provisions 
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result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
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Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate of the 
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the effect is material. 
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are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of 
the revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.
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3.        SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
Revenue recognition 
Income from credit facilities 
A charge for credit facilities is included at the outset in the Murabaha and Wakala agreement with the 
customer. The customer repays the debt in equal instalments over the year of the agreement. Income is 
deferred and recognised as income as it is earned, on a time apportionment basis. 
Dividend income 
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. 
Fees and commission income 
Fees and commission income are recognized at the time the related services are provided. 

 Translation of foreign currencies 
Transactions in currencies other than the Group’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the 
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates 
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. 
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, 
are included in the consolidated statement of income for the year. Exchange differences arising on the 
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in the consolidated statement of income 
for the year except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which 
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. For such non-monetary items, any exchange component of 
that gain or loss is also recognised directly in equity. 
The assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are expressed in KD using exchange rates 
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates 
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly during that year, in which case the exchange rates 
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and 
transferred to the Group’s foreign currency translation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in 
the consolidated statement of income in the year in which the foreign operation is disposed of. 

Zakat  
 Effective 10 December 2007, the Group has provided for Zakat in accordance with the requirements of Law 

No. 46 of 2006. The Zakat charge calculated in accordance with these requirements is charged to the 
consolidated statement of income.  

Contribution to Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences  
 The Group is legally required to contribute to the Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences 

(“KFAS”). The Group’s contributions to KFAS are recognized as an expense in the year during which the 
Group’s contribution is legally required.  

Dividend distribution 
 Dividend distribution to the Parent Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s 

consolidated financial statements in the year in which the dividends are approved by the Annual General 
Assembly (see note 23). 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
 Revenue recognition

 Translation of foreign currencies

 Zakat

 Contribution to Kuwait Foundation for the advancement of Sciences

 Dividend distribution
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3.        SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
Revenue recognition 
Income from credit facilities 
A charge for credit facilities is included at the outset in the Murabaha and Wakala agreement with the 
customer. The customer repays the debt in equal instalments over the year of the agreement. Income is 
deferred and recognised as income as it is earned, on a time apportionment basis. 
Dividend income 
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. 
Fees and commission income 
Fees and commission income are recognized at the time the related services are provided. 

 Translation of foreign currencies 
Transactions in currencies other than the Group’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the 
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates 
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. 
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, 
are included in the consolidated statement of income for the year. Exchange differences arising on the 
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in the consolidated statement of income 
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3.        SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
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6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
    31 December 

2008
 31 December 

2007 
    KD  KD 
 Cash at banks 3,247,787 3,504,205 
 Cash in portfolio - 41,920 

Cash on hand 3,367 10,163 
3,251,154 3,556,288 

7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
31 December 

2008
 31 December 

2007
KD  KD 

 (Restated) 
 Gross receivables 122,834,651 110,800,662 
 Less: deferred revenues (21,294,143) (19,904,360) 
 Less: provision for doubtful debts (4,287,913) (3,280,140) 

 Accounts receivable – net 97,252,595 87,616,162 

 Receivables aging 90 days and below are fully performing. As of 31 December 2008, gross receivables of 
KD 104,872,905 (31 December 2007: KD 104,402,020) were fully performing.  

The Group follows the CBK requirements for calculating the provision for doubtful debts, which requires a 
general provision of 1% on all credit facilities net of certain categories of collateral, to which CBK 
instructions are applicable, and not subject to specific provision. 

Specific provision as per the CBK requirements is taken net of certain categories of collateral, to which 
CBK instructions are applicable, for receivables aging above 90 days as per the following scheme:  

91 – 180 days are provided at 20%, 

181 – 360 days are provided at 50%,  

360 + days are provided at 100% 

 Aging of impaired receivables
31 December 

2008
 31 December 

2007
KD  KD 

 (Restated) 
 91 – 180 days 13,650,701  4,654,691 

 181 – 360 days 2,691,580  803,994 

 360 + days 1,619,465  939,957 

 Total  17,961,746 6,398,642 
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 
UNCERTAINTY (CONTNUED) 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 
Impairment losses on finance facilities 
The Group reviews its irregular finance facilities (if any) on a quarterly basis to assess whether a provision 
for impairment should be recorded in the consolidated statement of income. In particular, considerable 
judgement by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when 
determining the level of provisions required. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about 
several factors involving varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty, and actual results may differ resulting 
in future changes to such provisions. 
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets and useful lives 
The Group’s management tests annually whether tangible and intangible assets have suffered impairment in 
accordance with accounting policies stated in Note 3. The recoverable amount of an asset is determined based 
on value-in-use method. This method uses estimated cash flow projections over the estimated useful life of 
the asset discounted using market rates. 
The Group’s management determines the useful lives of tangible and intangible assets and the related 
depreciation and amortization charges. The depreciation and amortization charges for the year will change 
significantly if actual life is different from the estimated useful life of the asset. 

5. CORRECTION OF ERRORS 
 During the current year, management of the Group discovered the following: 

a) The method previously adopted by the Group for revenue recognition used to amortize the deferred 
revenues on non-performing loans into finance revenues. As per CBK instructions, profits from non-
performing loans should be suspended. The effect of the error was overstatement of finance revenues for 
the year ended 31 December 2007 by KD 5,715 and for previous years by KD 128,138.  

b) There were errors in the accounting system relating to prior years. The effect of the error was 
overstatement of finance revenues for the year ended 31 December 2007 by KD 895,242 and for the years 
ended 31 December 2006 and before by KD 517,626. 

c)  A discount expense of KD 128,023 should have been recorded in the year ended 31 December 2007. The
effect of the error was overstatement of finance revenues for the year ended 31 December 2007 by KD
128,023.

Accordingly, the respective accounts of finance revenues, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other 
credit balances and retained earnings have been restated by the amounts that we have been able to identify. 
The effect of the restatement on prior year's consolidated financial statements is summarised as below: 

2007
As previously 

reported 
2007

As restated 
  KD KD 
 Retained earnings at 1 January 2007 4,270,375 3,753,763 
 Retained earnings at 31 December 2007 5,830,003 4,490,207 
 Finance revenues for the year ended 31 December 2007 10,422,278 9,393,298 
 Accounts receivable at 31 December 2007 89,162,883 87,616,162 
 Accounts payable and other credit balances at 31 December 2007 2,601,182 2,729,205 
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 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
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UNCERTAINTY (CONTNUED) 

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 
Impairment losses on finance facilities 
The Group reviews its irregular finance facilities (if any) on a quarterly basis to assess whether a provision 
for impairment should be recorded in the consolidated statement of income. In particular, considerable 
judgement by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when 
determining the level of provisions required. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about 
several factors involving varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty, and actual results may differ resulting 
in future changes to such provisions. 
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets and useful lives 
The Group’s management tests annually whether tangible and intangible assets have suffered impairment in 
accordance with accounting policies stated in Note 3. The recoverable amount of an asset is determined based 
on value-in-use method. This method uses estimated cash flow projections over the estimated useful life of 
the asset discounted using market rates. 
The Group’s management determines the useful lives of tangible and intangible assets and the related 
depreciation and amortization charges. The depreciation and amortization charges for the year will change 
significantly if actual life is different from the estimated useful life of the asset. 

5. CORRECTION OF ERRORS 
 During the current year, management of the Group discovered the following: 

a) The method previously adopted by the Group for revenue recognition used to amortize the deferred 
revenues on non-performing loans into finance revenues. As per CBK instructions, profits from non-
performing loans should be suspended. The effect of the error was overstatement of finance revenues for 
the year ended 31 December 2007 by KD 5,715 and for previous years by KD 128,138.  

b) There were errors in the accounting system relating to prior years. The effect of the error was 
overstatement of finance revenues for the year ended 31 December 2007 by KD 895,242 and for the years 
ended 31 December 2006 and before by KD 517,626. 

c)  A discount expense of KD 128,023 should have been recorded in the year ended 31 December 2007. The
effect of the error was overstatement of finance revenues for the year ended 31 December 2007 by KD
128,023.

Accordingly, the respective accounts of finance revenues, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other 
credit balances and retained earnings have been restated by the amounts that we have been able to identify. 
The effect of the restatement on prior year's consolidated financial statements is summarised as below: 

2007
As previously 

reported 
2007

As restated 
  KD KD 
 Retained earnings at 1 January 2007 4,270,375 3,753,763 
 Retained earnings at 31 December 2007 5,830,003 4,490,207 
 Finance revenues for the year ended 31 December 2007 10,422,278 9,393,298 
 Accounts receivable at 31 December 2007 89,162,883 87,616,162 
 Accounts payable and other credit balances at 31 December 2007 2,601,182 2,729,205 



�� ���� ���� ���� ��

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
At 31 December 2008

AL MANAR FINANCING AND LEASING COMPANY K.S.C. (CLOSED)  
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended 31 December 2008 

 20 

8. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 
   31 December 

2008
 31 December

2007
    KD  KD 
 Investments in quoted local shares and funds  308,880 2,128,800 

Investments in unquoted local shares and funds  9,478,243 10,557,626 
Investments in unquoted foreign shares and funds  1,332,034 1,827,111 

   11,119,157 14,513,537 

The consolidated statement of income includes unrealized gain of KD 269,530 (31 December 2007: KD 
608,534) from revaluation of investments in unquoted shares and funds. 

  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in the following currencies: 

31 December 
2008

 31 December
2007

    KD  KD 
 Kuwaiti Dinar 9,419,519 12,994,753 
 US Dollar 367,604 579,807 
 Qatari Riyal - 938,977 
 Others 1,332,034 - 
  11,119,157 14,513,537 

9. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE 
The associated company is as follows: 

Percentage of ownership and 
voting power 

Name of company  

Country of 
incorporatio

n

31
December

2008
31 December 

2007 Principal activity 

Qatar Finance House Qatar 20% -
Financing 
activities 

On 10 March 2008, the Group acquired 20% shareholding interest in Qatar Finance House Company 
Q.P.S.C., a company incorporated in Qatar, whose principal activities are carrying consumer and project 
financing activities in accordance with Islamic Shari’a Law. The Group’s investment in Qatar Finance House 
Company Q.P.S.C. is equivalent to KD 4,037,550 at 31 December 2008 which includes goodwill arising on 
acquisition of KD 1,900,430 and is included in the investment in associate at 31 December 2008. The 
Group’s share in the balances of its associate at 31 December 2008 was as follows:  

2008  2007 
 KD  KD 
Assets 6,906,888  - 

Liabilities 4,726,187  - 

Revenues 643,737  - 

Share of results 176,617  - 
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7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 
 Analysis of provision for doubtful debts

31 December 
2008

 31 December 
2007

KD  KD 
 Specific  3,430,341 1,807,480 

 General 857,572 836,866 

 Surplus - 635,794 

 Total  4,287,913 3,280,140 

 During 2007, the Central Bank of Kuwait has revised the percentage required for general provision from 
2% to 1% on cash facilities. However, the reduced provision on the outstanding balances resulting from the 
new calculation was not to be recorded in the consolidated statement of income but remains suspended until 
20 November 2008 when the CBK issued a directive that permits the investment companies to release the 
surplus provision for doubtful debts to the consolidated statement of income. 

 Movement in the provision for doubtful debts    
    Specific 

provision 
 General 

provision Total
    KD  KD  KD 
 Balance at 1 January 2008 1,807,480 1,472,660 3,280,140 
 Charge / (release) during the year 1,622,861 (615,088) 1,007,773 

Balance at 31 December 2008 3,430,341 857,572 4,287,913 

    
Balance at 1 January 2007 1,606,407 549,081 2,155,488 
Charge during the year 201,073 923,579 1,124,652 

 Balance at 31 December 2007 1,807,480 1,472,660 3,280,140 

In determining the recoverability of accounts receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit 
quality of the receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The Group holds 
KD 7,607,991 (31 December 2007: KD 2,927,910) as collateral over its accounts receivable. Management 
believes that there is no further credit provision required in excess of the provision for doubtful debts. 

 The carrying amounts of the Group’s accounts receivable are denominated in KD and located in State of 
Kuwait. 

 The accounts receivable include an amount of KD 112,234,127 (31 December 2007: KD 68,015,370) 
pledged as collateral against Islamic Murabaha and Wakala payables (see note 13). 

 The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying amount of each class of receivable 
mentioned above (see note 28). 

7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
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14. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER CREDIT BALANCES  
    31 December 

2008
 31 December

2007
    KD  KD 

(Restated) 
 Trade payables  732,915 1,964,818 
 Accrued salaries and other staff accruals 219,914 365,197 
 Accrued dividends 367,156 160,646 

Provision for KFAS 72,304 43,130 
Provision for Zakat 45,480 2,936 
Provision for directors’ remuneration - 100,000 
Others 114,415 92,478 

1,552,184 2,729,205 

15. SHARE CAPITAL 
On 10 July 2008, the General Assembly approved the proposal of the Board of Directors to increase the 
Parent Company’s share capital by issuing 3,000,000 shares with a nominal value of 100 fils and a share 
premium of 18 fils for a total amount of KD 354,000 to attract the efficient employees in the Group 
according to the employees’ stock option plan. Accordingly, the authorized and fully issued share capital is 
KD 31,001,000 comprising of 310,010,000 shares of 100 fils each. 
The paid up share capital is KD 30,858,630 at 31 December 2008 (KD 30,701,000 at 31 December 2007). 

16. STATUTORY RESERVE  
 As required by the Kuwait Commercial Companies Law and the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, 

10% of the profit for the year is to be transferred to the statutory reserve until the reserve reaches a 
minimum of 50% of the paid up share capital. This reserve is not available for distribution except for 
payment of a dividend of 5% of paid up share capital in years when retained earnings are not sufficient for 
the payment of such dividends.  

17. VOLUNTARY RESERVE  
 In accordance with the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, a percentage of the profit for the year is 

to be transferred to the voluntary reserve. This transfer may be stopped by a resolution adopted by the 
ordinary assembly as recommended by the Board of Directors. There are no restrictions on distributions 
from the voluntary reserve. 

18. INVESTMENT INCOME 
 31 December 

2008 
 31 December

2007
    KD  KD 

 Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL (67,410) 623,006 
 Gain on sale of financial assets at FVTPL 1,486,108 869,284 

Dividend income 87,070 120,832 
1,505,768 1,613,122 
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10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 
 During the current year, the Group acquired through Musharaka agreements two investment properties as 

follows: 

a) A plot of land in Mahboola - Kuwait at a cost of KD 427,000 with a fair value at 31 December 2008 of KD 
427,000.

b) A plot of land in Lusail - Qatar at a cost of KD 1,463,519 with a fair value at 31 December 2008 of KD 
1,756,439.

The fair values of the investment properties at 31 December 2008 have been arrived at on the basis of a 
valuation carried out at that date by independent valuers that are not related to the Group. The valuation was 
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties. 

11. ISLAMIC MURABAHA AND WAKALA RECEIVABLES 
 Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables are the deposited amounts at local financial institutions according 

to Murabaha and Wakala contracts. The average yield on those contracts amounted to 8.5% (8.25% at 31 
December 2007). 

12. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS 
    31 December 

2008
 31 December

2007
    KD  KD 
 Prepaid expenses  193,717 296,377 
 Staff receivables and deductions  45,067 30,990 
 Accrued income  11,459 89,402 

Refundable deposits  28,014 28,014 
Other debit balances  80,497 100,001 

   358,754 544,784

13. ISLAMIC MURABAHA AND WAKALA PAYABLES 
In 2007, the Parent Company obtained a Murabaha amounting to US dollars 75 million equivalent to KD 
21,606,750 to be paid semi-annually with yield rate of 2% over the LIBOR on 6 bi-annual instalments ending 
on 28 March 2010.  
Islamic Murabaha and Wakala payables are guaranteed by assigning receivables amounting to KD 
112,234,127 (see note 7). 
The average cost on Islamic Murabaha and Wakala payables is 9% (8.55% at 31 December 2007). 
The Group has defaulted on a payment of KD 16,872,742 Islamic Wakalas due to two investment companies 
in Qatar (see note 29). 
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22. EARNINGS PER SHARE 
Earnings per share are calculated based on the profit for the year divided by the weighted average number of 
shares outstanding during the year as follows: 

    31 December 
2008 

 31 December
2007

    KD  KD 
(Restated) 

 Profit for the year 3,169,838 3,617,158

 Weighted average number of the Parent Company’s 
outstanding shares 307,574,867 304,963,832 

Earnings per share 10.31 Fils 11.86 Fils 

23. DIVIDENDS 
The Annual General Assembly held its meeting on 10 July 2008 and approved the annual audited 
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007 in addition to a cash 
dividend of 10%. This cash dividend was not accounted for within the consolidated financial statements for 
the year ended 31 December 2007. 

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
 Related parties consist of major shareholders, directors and executive officers of the Group, their families and 

companies of which they are the principal owners. All related party transactions approximate arms length 
terms and are approved by the Group’s management. 
The related party balances and transactions included in the  consolidated financial statements are as follows: 
  31 December 

2008 
 31 December

2007
 KD KD 
a) Accounts receivable 63,831 88,998 

b) Investments managed by major shareholder 10,468,029 13,797,671 

c) Due to related party (Qatar Finance House 
    Company QPSC) 1,364,039 - 

d) Islamic Murabaha and Wakala payables 4,522,592 11,900,000 

e) Compensation of key management personnel 
Salaries and other short term benefits 462,763 386,163 

Post-employment benefits 215,947 200,975 
.
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19. OTHER INCOME 
 31 December 

2008
 31 December

2007
    KD  KD 
 Financing fee income 707,648 616,960  

Collected fee income 64,414 89,006  
Others 283,104 419,951 

1,055,166 1,125,917

20. GENERAL AND ADMISNTRATIVE EXPENSES 
 31 December 

2008
 31 December

2007
    KD  KD 

Foreign currency loss 583,935  9,877  
Management fees 163,981 82,117  
Rent 149,417 120,880  
Commission 311,899 266,654  
Advertising 107,915  34,115  
Penalties 32,500  - 
Training costs 28,227  7,567  
Promotions 17,103  2,835  
IT consultancy cost 15,450  1,500  
Bank charges 30,962  8,011  
Sponsorship expenses 10,550  13,900  
Telephone charges 13,468  16,833  
Cleaning and messenger costs 24,668  10,898  
Internet charges 13,416  6,004  
Exhibitions 15,220  21,210  
Professional expenses 148,811  108,099  
Others 254,504  243,137  

1,922,026 953,637  

21. STAFF COSTS 
 31 December 

2008
 31 December

2007
    KD  KD 

Salaries and allowances 851,845 713,722  
Provision for staff indemnity 78,378 65,079  
Leave accrual 14,680 32,763  
Staff bonus 136,430 222,500  
Others 80,578 79,009  

1,161,911 1,113,073  
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  
Capital risk management  
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while 
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.  
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 13, 
cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 6 and equity, comprising paid up capital, share premium and 
reserves as disclosed in notes 15, 16 and 17 respectively and retained earnings and other reserves. 
Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at year end was as follows: 

  31 December 
2008 

 31 December
2007

  KD  KD 
 (Restated) 

 Debt 77,573,719 71,499,600 
 Cash and cash equivalents (3,251,154)  (3,556,288) 
 Net debt 74,322,565 67,943,312 

 Equity  37,473,542 37,103,783 

 Net debt to equity ratio 1.98 1.83 

Significant accounting policies 
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, 
the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each 
class of financial asset and financial liability are disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. 

Categories of financial instruments
  31 December 

2008
 31 December

2007
  KD  KD 

  (Restated) 
Financial assets    

 Cash and cash equivalents 3,251,154  3,556,288 
 Accounts receivable 97,252,595 87,616,162 
 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11,119,157 14,513,537 
 Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables 200,127 5,136,417 

   
Financial liabilities    

 Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables 77,573,719  71,499,600 
 Accounts payables and other credit balances 1,309,630  2,364,008 
 Due to related party 1,364,039  - 

Financial risk management objectives 
The Group’s management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the 
Group through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These 
risks include market risk (including foreign currency risk and equity price risk), operational risk, credit 
risk and liquidity risk. 

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 Capital risk management 
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25. GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRUTION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
Assets Liabilities 

 31 December
2008

 31 December
2007

31 December 
2008

 31 December
2007

 KD KD KD KD 
  (Restated)  (Restated) 
Kuwait 112,734,616 106,925,875 34,697,619 74,396,156
G.C.C. 5,369,584 4,199,840 46,038,052 - 
U.S.A. 105,013 374,224 - - 
 118,209,213 111,499,939 80,735,671 74,396,156

26. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION 
 Business segments are distinguishable components of the Group that provide products or services subject to 

risks and returns different from those of other business segments. Business segments are the primary reporting 
segments. The Group carries out its main activities in the State of Kuwait through two major segments: 

31 December 2008 

Finance Investment 
Unallocated 

items Total 
  KD  KD  KD  KD 
 Segment revenues 12,039,986 1,752,492 283,104 14,075,582 
 Segment expenses (8,216,682) - (2,689,062) (10,905,744) 
 Segment results 3,823,304 1,752,492 (2,405,958) 3,169,838 

 Segment assets 100,503,749 17,247,353 458,111 118,209,213 

 Segment liabilities 77,573,719 1,463,519 1,698,433 80,735,671 

31 December 2007 

Finance Investment 
 Unallocated 

items Total
  KD  KD  KD  KD 
  (Restated)  (Restated) 
 Segment revenues 10,099,264 2,017,138 419,951 12,536,353 
 Segment expenses (6,646,272) (743,496) (1,529,427) (8,919,195) 
 Segment results 3,452,992 1,273,642 (1,109,476) 3,617,158 

 Segment assets 91,172,450 19,649,954 677,535 111,499,939

 Segment liabilities 67,281,542 6,967,670 146,944 74,396,156

27. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
    31 December 

2008 
 31 December

2007
    KD  KD 
 Uncalled instalments to investment 2,647,377 750,437 
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  
Capital risk management  
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while 
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.  
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 13, 
cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 6 and equity, comprising paid up capital, share premium and 
reserves as disclosed in notes 15, 16 and 17 respectively and retained earnings and other reserves. 
Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at year end was as follows: 

  31 December 
2008 

 31 December
2007

  KD  KD 
 (Restated) 

 Debt 77,573,719 71,499,600 
 Cash and cash equivalents (3,251,154)  (3,556,288) 
 Net debt 74,322,565 67,943,312 

 Equity  37,473,542 37,103,783 

 Net debt to equity ratio 1.98 1.83 

Significant accounting policies 
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, 
the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each 
class of financial asset and financial liability are disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. 

Categories of financial instruments
  31 December 

2008
 31 December

2007
  KD  KD 

  (Restated) 
Financial assets    

 Cash and cash equivalents 3,251,154  3,556,288 
 Accounts receivable 97,252,595 87,616,162 
 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11,119,157 14,513,537 
 Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables 200,127 5,136,417 

   
Financial liabilities    

 Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables 77,573,719  71,499,600 
 Accounts payables and other credit balances 1,309,630  2,364,008 
 Due to related party 1,364,039  - 

Financial risk management objectives 
The Group’s management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the 
Group through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These 
risks include market risk (including foreign currency risk and equity price risk), operational risk, credit 
risk and liquidity risk. 

AL MANAR FINANCING AND LEASING COMPANY K.S.C. (CLOSED)  
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended 31 December 2008 

 26 

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  
Capital risk management  
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while 
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.  
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 13, 
cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 6 and equity, comprising paid up capital, share premium and 
reserves as disclosed in notes 15, 16 and 17 respectively and retained earnings and other reserves. 
Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at year end was as follows: 

  31 December 
2008 

 31 December
2007

  KD  KD 
 (Restated) 

 Debt 77,573,719 71,499,600 
 Cash and cash equivalents (3,251,154)  (3,556,288) 
 Net debt 74,322,565 67,943,312 

 Equity  37,473,542 37,103,783 

 Net debt to equity ratio 1.98 1.83 

Significant accounting policies 
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, 
the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each 
class of financial asset and financial liability are disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. 

Categories of financial instruments
  31 December 

2008
 31 December

2007
  KD  KD 

  (Restated) 
Financial assets    

 Cash and cash equivalents 3,251,154  3,556,288 
 Accounts receivable 97,252,595 87,616,162 
 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11,119,157 14,513,537 
 Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables 200,127 5,136,417 

   
Financial liabilities    

 Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables 77,573,719  71,499,600 
 Accounts payables and other credit balances 1,309,630  2,364,008 
 Due to related party 1,364,039  - 

Financial risk management objectives 
The Group’s management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the 
Group through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These 
risks include market risk (including foreign currency risk and equity price risk), operational risk, credit 
risk and liquidity risk. 

AL MANAR FINANCING AND LEASING COMPANY K.S.C. (CLOSED)  
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended 31 December 2008 

 26 

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  
Capital risk management  
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while 
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.  
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 13, 
cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 6 and equity, comprising paid up capital, share premium and 
reserves as disclosed in notes 15, 16 and 17 respectively and retained earnings and other reserves. 
Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at year end was as follows: 

  31 December 
2008 

 31 December
2007

  KD  KD 
 (Restated) 

 Debt 77,573,719 71,499,600 
 Cash and cash equivalents (3,251,154)  (3,556,288) 
 Net debt 74,322,565 67,943,312 

 Equity  37,473,542 37,103,783 

 Net debt to equity ratio 1.98 1.83 

Significant accounting policies 
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, 
the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each 
class of financial asset and financial liability are disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. 

Categories of financial instruments
  31 December 

2008
 31 December

2007
  KD  KD 

  (Restated) 
Financial assets    

 Cash and cash equivalents 3,251,154  3,556,288 
 Accounts receivable 97,252,595 87,616,162 
 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11,119,157 14,513,537 
 Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables 200,127 5,136,417 

   
Financial liabilities    

 Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables 77,573,719  71,499,600 
 Accounts payables and other credit balances 1,309,630  2,364,008 
 Due to related party 1,364,039  - 

Financial risk management objectives 
The Group’s management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the 
Group through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These 
risks include market risk (including foreign currency risk and equity price risk), operational risk, credit 
risk and liquidity risk. 

AL MANAR FINANCING AND LEASING COMPANY K.S.C. (CLOSED)  
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended 31 December 2008 

 26 

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  
Capital risk management  
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while 
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.  
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 13, 
cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 6 and equity, comprising paid up capital, share premium and 
reserves as disclosed in notes 15, 16 and 17 respectively and retained earnings and other reserves. 
Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at year end was as follows: 

  31 December 
2008 

 31 December
2007

  KD  KD 
 (Restated) 

 Debt 77,573,719 71,499,600 
 Cash and cash equivalents (3,251,154)  (3,556,288) 
 Net debt 74,322,565 67,943,312 

 Equity  37,473,542 37,103,783 

 Net debt to equity ratio 1.98 1.83 

Significant accounting policies 
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, 
the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each 
class of financial asset and financial liability are disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. 

Categories of financial instruments
  31 December 

2008
 31 December

2007
  KD  KD 

  (Restated) 
Financial assets    

 Cash and cash equivalents 3,251,154  3,556,288 
 Accounts receivable 97,252,595 87,616,162 
 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11,119,157 14,513,537 
 Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables 200,127 5,136,417 

   
Financial liabilities    

 Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables 77,573,719  71,499,600 
 Accounts payables and other credit balances 1,309,630  2,364,008 
 Due to related party 1,364,039  - 

Financial risk management objectives 
The Group’s management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the 
Group through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These 
risks include market risk (including foreign currency risk and equity price risk), operational risk, credit 
risk and liquidity risk. 

AL MANAR FINANCING AND LEASING COMPANY K.S.C. (CLOSED)  
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended 31 December 2008 

 26 

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  
Capital risk management  
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while 
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.  
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 13, 
cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 6 and equity, comprising paid up capital, share premium and 
reserves as disclosed in notes 15, 16 and 17 respectively and retained earnings and other reserves. 
Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at year end was as follows: 

  31 December 
2008 

 31 December
2007

  KD  KD 
 (Restated) 

 Debt 77,573,719 71,499,600 
 Cash and cash equivalents (3,251,154)  (3,556,288) 
 Net debt 74,322,565 67,943,312 

 Equity  37,473,542 37,103,783 

 Net debt to equity ratio 1.98 1.83 

Significant accounting policies 
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, 
the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each 
class of financial asset and financial liability are disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. 

Categories of financial instruments
  31 December 

2008
 31 December

2007
  KD  KD 

  (Restated) 
Financial assets    

 Cash and cash equivalents 3,251,154  3,556,288 
 Accounts receivable 97,252,595 87,616,162 
 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11,119,157 14,513,537 
 Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables 200,127 5,136,417 

   
Financial liabilities    

 Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables 77,573,719  71,499,600 
 Accounts payables and other credit balances 1,309,630  2,364,008 
 Due to related party 1,364,039  - 

Financial risk management objectives 
The Group’s management monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the 
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system’s failure, human error, fraud or external events.  
When controls fail to perform, operational risk can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory 
implications, or lead to financial loss. 
The Group has a set of policies and procedures, which are applied to identify, assess and supervise 
operational risk in addition to other types of risks relating to the financial activities of the Group. 
Operational risk is managed to ensure compliance with policies and procedures and monitors operational 
risk as part of overall risk management activities. 
The operational risk of the Group is managed in line with the CBK instructions concerning the general 
guidelines for internal controls and best practice for managing and supervising operational risks in 
financial institutions.

Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation causing 
the other party to incur a financial loss. To limit this risk, the Group deals with fairly good customers from 
corporates, financial institutions and high net worth individuals and has policies and procedures in place 
to limit the amount of credit exposure to any single and related counter party. These policies include the 
non-concentration of credit risk. The Group minimizes other concentrations of credit risk by undertaking 
transactions with a large number of customers. All policies relating to credit are reviewed and approved 
by the Board of Directors.

Maximum exposure to credit risk 
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet. The 
maximum exposure is shown gross, before the effect of mitigation through the use of collateral held or 
other credit enhancements.

    Gross exposure 
    31 December 

2008
31 December

2007
    KD KD
    (Restated) 
 Cash and cash equivalents   3,251,154 3,556,288 
 Accounts receivables   97,252,595 87,616,162 
 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  11,119,157 14,513,537 
 Islamic Murabaha and Wakala receivables   200,127 5,136,417 
    111,823,033  110,822,404 

Where financial assets are recorded at fair value, the amounts shown above represent the current credit 
risk exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in 
values. 
For more detail on the maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instruments, references 
shall be made to the specific notes.  
The Group manages the exposure of credit risk by the use of collaterals and the diversification of the 
Group’s assets over different kinds of activities and business segments. 
The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. 
Guidelines are implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and valuation parameters. 
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that the value of an asset will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. 
Market risk is managed on the basis of pre-determined asset allocations across various asset categories, a 
continuous appraisal of market conditions and trends and management’s estimate of long and short term 
changes in fair value. 
The Group is not exposed to any risk in terms of the re-pricing of its liabilities since, in accordance with 
Islamic Sharia’a, the Group does not provide a guaranteed contractual rate of return to its depositors. 

Foreign currency risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in 
foreign currency exchange rates. 
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions that are denominated in a currency other 
than the KD. The Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by dealing in 
currencies that do not fluctuate significantly against the KD. 
The table below indicates the foreign currencies to which the Group had significant exposure. The 
analysis calculates the effect of a 5% increase in foreign currency rates against KD, with all other 
variables held constant on the profit and equity.  A negative amount in the table reflects a potential net 
reduction in profit or equity, while a positive amount reflects a net potential increase.

  31 December 2008 31 December 2007 

Effect 
on profit 

Effect 
on equity  

Effect  
on profit 

Effect  
on equity 

KD KD KD KD
US Dollar   29,085  -  40,425  - 
Qatari Riyal   (462,510)  100,873  37,617  - 
AED   (382,359)  -  -  - 

            Equity price risk
 Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities will fluctuate as a result of changes in the level 

of equity indices or the value of individual share prices. Equity price risk arises from the change in fair 
values of equity investments. The Group manages the risk through diversification of investments in terms 
of geographic distribution and industry concentration. The effect on profit (as a result of a change in the 
fair value of equity instruments held as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) due to an 
assumed 5% change in market indices, with all other variables held constant, is as follows: 

31 December 
2008

31 December
2007

Market indices
% change in 
equity price

Effect 
on profit

Effect 
on profit

    KD  KD
GCC Region 5% 555,958  725,677 

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 
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Where financial assets are recorded at fair value, the amounts shown above represent the current credit 
risk exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in 
values. 
For more detail on the maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of financial instruments, references 
shall be made to the specific notes.  
The Group manages the exposure of credit risk by the use of collaterals and the diversification of the 
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The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. 
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)  
Credit risk (Continued) 
Credit quality per class of financial assets (Continued)

Neither past due nor impaired    
High Moderate

Past due 
or impaired Total

  KD  KD  KD  KD
31 December 2007        
Cash and cash equivalents 3,556,288  -  -  3,556,288
Accounts receivable 62,979,096 41,372,967 6,448,599 110,800,662 
Financial assets at fair 

value through profit or 
loss 12,678,977 1,834,560 - 14,513,537

Islamic Murabaha and 
Wakala receivables - 5,136,417 - 5,136,417

  79,214,361 48,343,944 6,448,599 134,006,904 

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its financial obligations. Liquidity risk can be 
caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades which may cause certain sources of funding to dry up 
immediately. To guard against this risk, management have diversified funding sources and assets are 
managed with liquidity in mind, maintaining a healthy balance of cash, cash equivalents and readily 
marketable securities. Further, the Group yearly assesses the financial viability of customers. 

The liquidity profile of financial liabilities are as follows: 

Within 1 
month

 1 to 3 
months

3 to 12 
months

 Above 1 
year Total 

31 December 
2008

KD  KD  KD  KD  KD

Financial
   Liabilities  

        

Islamic Murabaha  
 and Wakala 

payables 25,787,343  6,360,950  30,026,088  15,399,338  77,573,719 
Accounts payable 

and other credit 
balances -  1,552,184  -  -  1,552,184 

Due to related 
party -  1,364,039  -  -  1,364,039 

  25,787,343  9,277,173 30,026,088 15,399,338 80,489,942 

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
 Credit risk (Continued)
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)  
Credit risk (Continued) 

Maximum exposure to credit risk (Continued) 
 The main types of collateral obtained are as follows: 

Cash collaterals  
Bank Guarantees  
Income generating and non-income generating real estate  
Shares and other Islamic financial instruments 

Management monitors the market value of collateral and requests additional collateral if required in 
accordance with the underlying agreement.  It is the Group’s policy to dispose of repossessed properties in 
an orderly fashion. The proceeds are used to reduce or repay the outstanding claim. In general, the Group 
does not occupy repossessed properties for business use.
At 31 December 2008, %48.60 (31 December 2007: %15.62) of the accounts receivable were fully 
guaranteed.

           Credit quality per class of financial assets 
 In managing its portfolio, the Group utilizes ratings and other measures and techniques which seek to take 

account of all aspects of perceived risk. Credit exposures classified as ‘High’ quality are those where the 
ultimate risk of financial loss from the obligor’s failure to discharge its obligation is assessed to be low. 
These include facilities to corporate entities with financial condition, risk indicators and capacity to repay 
which are considered to be good to excellent. Credit exposures classified as ‘Moderate’ quality comprise 
all other facilities where the payment performance is fully compliant with contractual conditions and 
which are not ‘impaired’. The ultimate risk of possible financial loss on ‘Moderate’ quality is assessed to 
be higher than that for the exposures classified within the ‘High’ quality range. 

 The table below shows the credit quality of financial assets, based on the Group’s credit rating system. 
Neither past due nor impaired    

High Moderate
Past due 

or impaired Total
  KD  KD  KD  KD

31 December 2008        
Cash and cash equivalents 3,251,154 -  -  3,251,154 
Accounts receivable 49,133,860  55,717,798  17,982,993  122,834,651 
Financial assets at fair 

value through profit or 
loss 8,433,757  2,685,400  -  11,119,157 

Islamic Murabaha and 
Wakala receivables 200,127  -  -  200,127 

  61,018,898 58,403,198 17,982,993 137,405,089 

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
 Credit risk (Continued)
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)  
Credit risk (Continued) 
Credit quality per class of financial assets (Continued)

Neither past due nor impaired    
High Moderate

Past due 
or impaired Total

  KD  KD  KD  KD
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Islamic Murabaha and 
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  79,214,361 48,343,944 6,448,599 134,006,904 

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its financial obligations. Liquidity risk can be 
caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades which may cause certain sources of funding to dry up 
immediately. To guard against this risk, management have diversified funding sources and assets are 
managed with liquidity in mind, maintaining a healthy balance of cash, cash equivalents and readily 
marketable securities. Further, the Group yearly assesses the financial viability of customers. 

The liquidity profile of financial liabilities are as follows: 

Within 1 
month

 1 to 3 
months

3 to 12 
months

 Above 1 
year Total 

31 December 
2008

KD  KD  KD  KD  KD

Financial
   Liabilities  

        

Islamic Murabaha  
 and Wakala 

payables 25,787,343  6,360,950  30,026,088  15,399,338  77,573,719 
Accounts payable 

and other credit 
balances -  1,552,184  -  -  1,552,184 

Due to related 
party -  1,364,039  -  -  1,364,039 

  25,787,343  9,277,173 30,026,088 15,399,338 80,489,942 
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  

Liquidity risk (Continued) 

Within 1 
month

 1 to 3 
months

3 to 12 
months

 Above 1 
year Total

31 December 2007 KD  KD  KD  KD  KD
Financial 

Liabilities  
        

Islamic Murabaha 
and Wakala 
payables 4,488,611 11,892,028 23,439,011 31,679,950 71,499,600 

Accounts payable 
and other credit 
balances - 2,729,205 - - 2,729,205 

  4,488,611  14,621,233  23,439,011 31,679,950  74,228,805 

Fair value of financial instruments 
 Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction 

between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction, other than in a forced or liquidation 
sale. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and other models as 
appropriate.

29. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
 On 26 and 27 May 2009, the Group made full payments towards the past due Islamic Wakalas to two 

investment companies in Qatar (see note 13). 

30. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 
 Certain comparative figures have been reclassified or restated (see note 5) to conform with the current year 

presentation.  
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  

Liquidity risk (Continued) 
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  

Liquidity risk (Continued) 

Within 1 
month

 1 to 3 
months

3 to 12 
months

 Above 1 
year Total

31 December 2007 KD  KD  KD  KD  KD
Financial 

Liabilities  
        

Islamic Murabaha 
and Wakala 
payables 4,488,611 11,892,028 23,439,011 31,679,950 71,499,600 

Accounts payable 
and other credit 
balances - 2,729,205 - - 2,729,205 

  4,488,611  14,621,233  23,439,011 31,679,950  74,228,805 

Fair value of financial instruments 
 Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction 

between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction, other than in a forced or liquidation 
sale. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and other models as 
appropriate.

29. SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
 On 26 and 27 May 2009, the Group made full payments towards the past due Islamic Wakalas to two 

investment companies in Qatar (see note 13). 

30. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 
 Certain comparative figures have been reclassified or restated (see note 5) to conform with the current year 

presentation.  


